HALIFAX BOARD OF SELECTMEN

SELECTMEN MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2019 - 7:00 P.M.

SELECTMEN MEETING ROOM

--------------------------------------------------------------

Meeting came to order at 7:00 p.m. with Selectmen Kim R. Roy, Troy E. Garron and Thomas Millias present.
The following business was discussed:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Board as well as those attending tonight’s meeting stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance.

AGENDA

The agenda for Tuesday, January 22nd, was unanimously approved.

MINUTES
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously approved the following Selectmen Minutes:
Executive Session – December 11, 2018 
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously voted to release the following Selectmen Minutes:

Executive Session – December 11, 2018 

AFFIRMED WARRANT AND COMMITMENTS
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously affirmed approval for the payment of the following warrants and commitments:
	Vendor Warrant
	# 64
	$ 98,187.27

	Ambulance Commitment
	
	$ 66,573.10

	from 12/31/18 – 1/6/19
	
	

	Ambulance Commitment
	
	$ 44,950.80

	from 1/7/19 – 1/13/19
	
	


APPROVED WARRANTS  

Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously approved payment of the following warrants and commitments:

	Payroll Warrant
	# 65
	$ 371,478.01 

	Vendor Warrant
	# 66
	$ 199,940.70 


APPROVED SELECTMEN BILLS 

Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously approved payment of the following Selectmen bills:

	Express Newspapers (ad/transfer alcohol lic./Twin Lakes)……...
Ellis Auto Body & Service (repairs/Chevy Tahoe/police Dept.)...
Ellis Auto Body & Service (repairs/Chevy Tahoe/police Dept.)...
	$      42.00

$ 1,512.50
$    500.00
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SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS
Nancy Botelho - Appointment to the Beautification Committee
Candace Kniffin, member of the Beautification Committee, stated that Botelho has participated in many events and Kniffin feels like she already belongs on the committee.  She will be filling the vacancy of Tom Fitzgerald.  Roy wanted to applaud the committee for their Facebook posting regarding plastic bags.  Kniffin said that they put it out there to generate some dialogue and they will have experts who will do a presentation at Town Meeting.

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously appointed Nancy Botelho to the Beautification Committee, term to expire June 30, 2019.
GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS
Metro South Chamber of Commerce
The Chamber is sponsoring its annual regional roundtable lunch on February 22nd.  Mayor Carpenter is featured.  Seelig is not going to attend but the Board is invited (need to RSVP).
Housing Authority Appointment

The appointment to the Housing Authority for this evening has been indefinitely postponed until John Mather is able to attend (and the Authority has a quorum attending).
School Renovation Project
The doors should be delivered this week and a schedule proposed.  Once that happens, Steve Theran will propose a meeting date.
The walk-through for fire suppression system was this afternoon.  Sub-bids are due on January 31st and bids are due on February 7th.
Local Mandates Fire-Police Cancer Presumption Legislation
The Division of Local Mandates has asked for an extension to investigate further.  Seelig has granted an extension to February 28th.  No action needed from the BOS. 
MIIA - Designation of Worker’s Safety Representative
MIIA has asked that someone from each MIIA community be the point person for OSHA/Workers’ Safety.  This does not mean that this person does everything but is someone that MIIA can contact about various initiatives and projects.  Given that, Seelig has recommend that the Board choose the Town Administrator.  

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously appointed Charles Seelig as the point person for OSHA/Workers’ Safety.
Air B&B Room Tax
Halifax has never discussed approving the local room tax as it has no hotels/motels.  However, with the new Air-B-and-B law now in place, the Town could collect (through the State) if property owners rent out their homes/rooms on a non-long term basis.  Seelig thinks the collections will be minimal but everything can be helpful and at some point should think about this.  Most of the abutting communities have not established it, but most of them, aside from Bridgewater and Middleboro which do have them, don’t have hotels, etc.  Maximum rate is 6% and the Town could choose a rate lower than that amount.  
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Automated External Defibrillation Program Agreement

The Police Department signed an agreement with Beth Israel Deaconess to have the hospital assist the Department in its AED program.  No action needed is needed from the Board. 
SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Joan Pierce - DFW - Aldana Rd. parcels
Pierce came in this evening to talk about DFW purchasing some property here in Halifax as a way of resolving the remaining issue of the $52,500 that they owe to the town.  The property she is talking about is located off Aldana Road (Map 34; Lot10A Plan Book 35 Page 240).
Millias wanted to clarify that this piece of property was not part of the last deal with DFW but it is a piece of land that DFW wants to acquire and Piece fully agreed.
Seelig asked if this parcel was a buildable lot and the appraisal came in at $125,000 would the Town get the $125,000 and Pierce said that she can present to her committee that the Town accepts and if the lot is buildable would her committee be willing to give the Town the full fair market value of the property.
Pierce said that they are expecting some money but they may not be able to commit to the funds this fiscal year.  Millias said if they can come to an agreement he does not have a problem whether it is this fiscal year or next fiscal year.    
She further said that they can have the appraisal done with the intent that town is willing to work with DFW but she needs the selectmen to understand that if it does not come in as a buildable lot then the property really is not going to be worth anywhere near the $52,500.  Looking at the map Millias said all they need is 40,000 square feet of continuous uplands for a buildable so in his mind looking at the map there is reasonable way to find a buildable area and added that it does not have to be in any particular block or form but just has to be touching.

Pierce questioned the setbacks and Millias said it only has to be fifty - thirty - thirty.  Millias pointed out that DFW is not giving the town the whole $125,000 but that minus the $52,500 that DFW owes the town from a previous sale.     
Piece asked if the town wants the full market value whether it is buildable or not buildable and the Board confirmed that is what they want.   Roy said let’s hope this works out but if not what happens then and Pierce said that she will have come back and talk with them.  
Again she said that they will not know until March what funds will be available and asked if all goes well could be an Article for the parcel be on the warrant in May and the Board said yes.  The Board thanked her for coming in.  
GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS (CONTINUED)

Monponsett Pond Navigational Hazard
Suzanne Lillie of the Monponsett Watershed Association has written to Seelig regarding the signage for navigational hazards on Monponsett.  He told her that the Town had not taken any action as it would then become liable for any failings (there are other problems such as having the resources to do this).  He has sent letters to the Governor, the Executive Secretary of Energy and Environmental Affairs, State Senator Brady and State Representative LaNatra about this and am waiting to hear back.
Mudfest
The Planning Board will hold a public hearing on February 7th at 6:35 pm on a request by Bob Bergstrom/Mudfest for site plan approval.  
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Bergstrom has requested waivers from all the site plan requirements including elementary ones such as including numeric dimensions for the lot lines.  Also the plan, as shown, does not meet the requirements of the site plan.  Seelig said that he is not opposed to Mudfest but events of this magnitude need some requirements.  
Millias thinks that he should be held to something and felt it was not an unreasonable request from the town.  He also said that there is no engineer stamp on the site plans

Seelig will be attending the hearing and asked the Board if they wanted to attend or send a letter with comment and/or concerns.  Garron said to send a letter.  
Surplus Property – Town Clerk
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously declared twenty-four (24) metal, collapsible voting booths surplus.
Soil Contamination

Vector South, owner of the property at 416-434 Plymouth Street (the plaza next to Rockland Trust), has been notified about soil and groundwater contamination.  There is no action by the Town to take, but Seelig would like to ask DEP to keep the Board notified about what steps are taken to resolve the problem.  
SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Continuation of revocation hearings Twin Lakes Liquors & Convenience & Davis Auto
Seelig stated that Evergreen Beverage is on schedule with making payments and Davis Automotive is working on fall of 2018 taxes owed but continues to make scheduled payments.  He is recommending that they continue the hearing to March 26th at 7:45 pm. 
GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS (CONTINUED)

Mooring Permits
The Conservation Commission’s secretary had been contacted by a realtor who claimed that the realtor’s client (a property owner in Halifax) had a mooring permit which the client felt was “owned” by the client and went with the property (whoever purchased the property also kept the mooring permit).  Seelig has reviewed the matter with the Police Chief (he does not have a file of mooring permits – they may have been issued, but there’re no records of them) and checked the information on other municipal web sites.  The determination is that mooring permits do not go with the property.  Someone who purchases a property that was owned by someone who had a mooring permit needs to apply for a new mooring permit.  Seelig has passed this information along to the secretary who will contact the realtor.

Annual Town Meeting Article

The office has received an Article from the Water Department for a new service truck.
Highway Garage Doors
The Town received the following bids for the Highway garage doors: 

Nadeau Corporation - $73,800


E5 Builders - $27,800

The low bid was greater than the amount originally appropriated ($21,700) therefore Seelig plans to place an article on the STM next month and transfer the money from one of the other M&SBC projects for which bids came in lower than the amount appropriated.
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J&J Motorsports Parking of Vehicles
The Planning Board has contacted J&J Motorsports at 413 Plymouth Street because the vehicles were being parked in areas that were not approved in the site plan.  No action is needed from the BOS. 
Police Chief Contract
Chief Chaves formally wrote to the Board to start negotiations for the salary for FY2020.
COA Project – Webby Engineering
Webby had contacted Winslow Architects about bills for the work that they did on this project (legit).  Winslow indicated that it would pay a portion of them out of the allowance set aside in the contract with the Town paying the remainder.  There is money in the project budget.  Seelig has notified M&SBC and is waiting to hear back as to when the bills will be paid.
Electricity Aggregation 

The office has received quarterly report from Colonial Power Group.
Waterman v. Halifax
The hearing on the unfair labor practice (not an appeal of the grievance although that may still happen) is scheduled for March 14th.  Seelig and attorney Gilman will be going.  The Board and Hayward do not have to attend.  
407 South Street
Because of the way the Town foreclosed on the property, the previous owner does not have the simple right of redeeming the property for the amount owed.  It would require a reversal of the court’s decision along with the Town not opposing this action.  At this point, Town Counsel continues to work with the family to have the property vacated by the end of next month.  The Council on Aging will try to assist, where appropriate.
Nips Update
After Chelsea banning nips, Salem has indicated an interest in having a 5-cent deposit.  Seelig asked the Board if they would like him to contact neighboring communities to see if there is interest in taking some type of action to reduce the amount of litter caused by nips.  The Board asked how this would be enforced and Seelig said to tell the package stores that they are to allowed to sell nips.  He said the only way this will work is if the surrounding towns do the same.  Millias thought this was a reasonable endeavor. 
Web Site Update
Cesar and Seelig have reviewed the non-price proposals (other than CivicPlus/Virtual Town Hall) for a re-do of the web site and picked the one from Granicus.  Granicus then quoted a one-time cost of $7,500 for the re-do (CivicPlus quoted $3,000 or $4,500 depending on the level of work that the Town requested) and then an annual fee of $4,000 in year 2 (year 1 would be free) with an increase of 5% each year thereafter.  CivicPlus should continue to charge the $3,000 annual fee.
Seelig has not been very satisfied with CivicPlus/VTH because of the lack of pro-active initiatives from them during the last few years.  The site is kept up and running and when he has needed to add/edit pages, everything has worked.
Granicus’ sites appear to be more robust and better designed, especially versus the templates that CivicPlus uses.  
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If you choose to go with CivicPlus, then he will go with the more comprehensive re-design ($4,500) than using the templates ($3,000).  He thinks that Granicus will offer a greater level of service with on-line workshops, etc., but not sure whether the site is important enough to the Town to pay the extra cost.
If you want to use CivicPlus, then he can either ask for the one-time money at the Special Town Meeting in February or spread it across the operating budget over three years (we did something similar when the web site started).  With Granicus he will need the upfront money at the STM.
Millias said to go with something we can use, Roy and Garron agreed.  

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Transfer Liquor License Twin Lakes Liquor & Convenience to Halifax Liquor & Market 
The applicant has asked to withdraw his application without prejudice.  Seelig is recommending that the Board accept.

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to accept the applicants request to withdrawal, without prejudice, their application for liquor license transfer from Evergreen Beverage Company d/b/a Twin Lakes Liquor & Convenience to Monponsett Inc. d/b/a Halifax Liquor & Market.

GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS (CONTINUED)

Chapter 40B – Plymouth Street – Peck Property
MassHousing will hold an informal site visit for the Peck Chapter 40B property tomorrow at 1 pm.  Everyone is invited but seeing as Seelig just heard of this today it was too late to post for the BOS to attend the site visit. 
Articles for STM – February 25, 2019

1) Additional appropriation for the fire suppression system (if necessary)

2) Transfer from M&SBC article (to be determined) to highway garage door account ($7,300 based on bid and any possible change orders)

3) Web site – one-time re-vamp payment ($7,500)

4) Monponsett Pond - $10,000 to cover the additional costs for East Monponsett Pond treatment

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Scott Clawson - Fieldstone Farms
Seelig began by saying that tonight’s discussion is a continuation of the discussion the BOS had a couple weeks ago with Attorney Taylor about the request to increase the number of show days from 30 to 32 or 33 for calendar 2019.   The Board agreed to take it under advisement and re-visit the subject either with Attorney Taylor and/or Mr. Clawson.  At this point, Mr. Clawson has sent in show dates for 2019.  Seelig is a little confused because the request that was sent via email is showing 31 show days but they don’t exactly match the days that are showing on the web site.  Also, the dates he sent for August are for August 14-18, then August 19-24 and the web site lists them as August 14-18, then August 20-24 and August 25.  Clawson is only allowed 30 days hence any extra days are not allowed unless the Board through some process comes to agreement to increase the number of days.  
Clawson said he thinks they made a mistake on the August 19th (Monday) as it should have been the 20th.  Seelig then asked so the 20th to the 24th not the 25th and Clawson said that was correct.  
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He said that he is asking for the 25th and Seelig said the web site shows the 25th as occurring already therefore making it 31show days and Clawson said that was correct.  
Seelig said that he reviewed the Agreement and the number of shows, the multi-day shows can increase without going back to the judge for a change in the Agreement but it does not mention show days as being allowed to go by mutual agreement without going back to the judge.  There is a line about the shows that can increase above seven, which was multi-days, but there is not a similar line about the number of show days.  The show days says 30 and does not say the Board of Selectmen can agree to increase the number of show days.  It says that for the number of multi-day shows, which is different, which is the seven multi-day shows.  

Taylor said the line Seelig is talking about, page 4/section 8, the first line in the second paragraph of that does say that the seven multiple-day horse shows, horse shows being capitalized and then in the second sentence horse show is not capitalized.  So additional horse shows would also necessarily be interpreted to have required additional show days.

Roy said that the Board has meet with two different attorneys from two different firms to look at this and they both have explained to us that we do not have the power to change the Agreement and would have to go back to Court to do so. 
Taylor believes that the Board has the ability to allow additional horse shows outside of the Agreement and also the Agreement means that it is automatic for Fieldstone Farms to have the shows that are listed in the agreement, but the agreement also makes it clear that everyone is on the same position that the horse shows are allowed as a right; that there is no restriction under the by-laws of the Town as to the horse shows themselves.  The Agreement says the Town’s regulations for the horse shows related to interest of public health, safety and environment.  Also, that the Town … although the conduct of the horse shows is permitted.  So, we have 120-plus acre farm, which is over the five acres, we are agricultural, so the zoning by-laws do not directly apply.  The shows are permitted in the Town’s, in the regulations for the Town would be for the public health, safety and environment, and that’s what the rest of this whole entire Agreement is about – the safety issues.  And the number of horse shows is … there would be a question as to whether or not Clawson would even have to ask for any of the horse shows outside of that, but we dealt with ahead of time, so this is how many are automatic additional shows, we are here … 
Seelig said if we have reached an agreement that allowed for a limit written into the Agreement meaning if it really was not an issue as to how many show days or how many multi-show days shows we would have then that would have been written into the Agreement.  Instead, both sides agreed to very specific amounts of multi-day shows and show days, and we went through a number of months giving you every opportunity to making revisions to that.  Seelig sees little reason why we would have reached that point and gone into those numbers to then simply say ‘well, it really doesn’t matter.’

Taylor said two reasons: the original Agreement from 1993 had a limitation on the number of shows.  So, when we came back here we were starting with established limitation that was rigid – there was no flexibility in that agreement whatsoever.  Then when we had the agreement, we were looking to expand the number of shows under that agreement and we added specific lines to indicate that we could come to the Board of Selectmen to add more so we would not have to go through the expense of everyone going to court.
Millias question that the Agreement said ‘more shows’ and Taylor said the first line is to define terms, limiting the number of multiple, multi-day shows, and then the second line is not capitalized, it’s not necessarily the ‘defined’ term, but when you read the word … and Roy finished by saying “you mean the word isn’t capitalized”?
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Taylor said the defined terms in the Agreement are capitalized, a minor point maybe, but when you read the agreement as a whole, we put it in there to give the Board of Selectmen the authority to add horse shows.  He believes it would be fair to read into that the Board would have to have the same authority to add days where needed because if we have seven horse shows, seven multi-day horse shows using thirty days then we wanted to add another one, that first line would be meaningless to add more multi-day shows because you could also have …
Millias said if the shows had less days in them it would still fit inside the 30 days.  Meaning that he has a four-day show so if he were to have a three-day show he would not need as many days and can still have seven shows. 
Taylor said it goes both ways because the language is not so limited, and he thinks when you read it we gave the power to add more horse shows and with that would necessarily would come the power to add more days.  The alternative is anyone who wants to use the property could do a separate application without having anything to do with this agreement.  We are here asking for one more show because we have a group (here this evening) who wants to host a show in June so that is why we need the extra days.  He believes that the Agreement has that reading into it, had he known that is exactly the comment he would have been to talk with him ahead of time.   
Millias said it was not just one counsel and Roy said they had two different counsels tell them that the Board did not have the authority to do that and that we needed to go into court.  Taylor disagreed with that.  She then said to Taylor that he does not represent the town he represents Mr. Clawson and he is a very good attorney for Mr. Clawson but again they sat with two different firms and both explained how the Agreement was written and the fact that the town’s Board of Selectmen do not have the authority to grant the additional days without us going back to court.  Again, Taylor said he still disagrees with them and Millias said that they disagree with Taylor.  Taylor further said he did not know from what perspective their reasoning is as he does not know if they looked into or if they focused just on that line.  Roy added or capitalizations of certain words?  He said he does not know if they drew any attentions to that or if they focused on the beginning where there is a clear understanding that the horse shows can be done as of right, and the only regulations for the Town are the public safety, environment …
Roy asked so why do we even have an agreement because if it was just of right then we would have not gone to court and had this agreement and Millias said exactly. 
Taylor said that back in 1993, from what he was told historically, there was a building permit issue on the property and for some reason in resolving that issue this came up and he believes there was also probably a difference of opinion as to what authority the town had over what could be done, so the town reached this understanding and because it was an on-going case, it was made into part of our consent agreement to basically prevent a bigger problem.  He thinks the Agreement says that the town has no say in this number of shows other than just what is in the Agreement and everything else about the shows, the other regulations are all taken care of and addressed in here and through the outside Boards.  
Roy said we spent about nine meetings working on this agreement, so to what Seelig had said why did we even reference any limit to shows if to your point is Clawson can do whatever he wants.  Taylor said that was not his point and Roy asked what is it and Tylor said back in 1993 there was already an agreement that had a limitation of the shows, so they expanded on it.  He believes there would be a question as to whether additional shows or additional any events could just be done at the property going outside of the Agreement through the regular permitting process.  Roy asked if what he was saying is outside of horse shows and Taylor said he thinks you could still do additional horse shows, the Agreement says the Town cannot say no these shows, 30 shows, this is automatic and there is nothing in here, and then we put a line in this agreement which wasn’t contemplated before, about expanding.
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Roy said so you are referencing that particular line and he said yes in the beginning, it is clear that the use of the horse shows is permitted and outside of this Agreement there is no reference anywhere as to what could limit the horse shows absent this agreement.  So more or less it was a voluntary reduction in ’93 and negotiated expansion where both sides got beneficial changes to the Agreement and there are a lot of changes in the agreement that benefitted the town and Roy said when we revised it three years ago, and Taylor said yes.  She then asked if he could remind her what benefits for the Town of Halifax was in the Agreement and he said the enforcement sections of which Roy agreed.  
Millias asked why does the language even go in there about shows and dates and Taylor said it was already in there from 1993.  He then asked why did we leave it in there if it wasn’t a negotiable item and again Taylor said because it was an agreement from 1993 that puts that …. And Millias finished by saying that limits the shows. 

Roy said that they went through all this during those exhausting nine meeting so why didn’t we just say ‘hey, by the way, we don’t need this limit because by right it’s your …’

Taylor said that they would be happy to join the Town in vacating the Agreement if you agree with the position that there is no limitation to the horse shows and Roy said that they would have to check with town counsel before she would believe that.  
Taylor said that they have a new line to the Agreement, which didn’t show up anywhere before, that additional events/horse shows could be done with the Board of Selectmen approval and this is what they are asking. 

Roy questioned the extra line and Seelig said there is an extra line because someone is arguing about the capital letters.  Taylor said it is how conservatively do you read the line or as Millias said how liberally you read the line.  
Taylor said that he has been wrestling with this and looking for the argument and believes when you read the Agreement …  he does not know if the attorneys got into to statutory construction in interpreting the construction of contracts, language is not typically put in unless it has a purpose and a meaning, and here the Selectmen have the authority to have add more shows and with that would be implied also if you have more shows, there needs to be more days and you can do it.  Also, there are two parties to this agreement: the Board of Selectmen and Mr. Clawson.  So, what he thinks even if the attorney said ‘well, the Agreement has these limitations’ – you have two parties to an agreement, they can agree that we can do this.  

Roy believes it was the liability that we open ourselves to and asked Seelig to explain if the abutters … 

Seelig said that is part of it and continued to say if we go down that road of Clawson asking for 35, 40, 45, 50 nothing prevents him, under Taylor’s argument, from coming back next year and asking for 35 or 40 or whatever number he wants.  Having gone through what we did a couple summers ago with all the interested parties, including the abutters, is at some point you’ve got a ‘horse of a different color’.  If I am an abutter maybe I can cope with this level that we have right now, but I can’t cope with something happening there every single week.  Now, I don’t know if that is how they feel, but we went through an extensive process to make sure that their views, concerns and questions or comments were brought in, and we worked very diligently with you to work out an agreement that was satisfactory to all parties.  He further said the number of shows line is attached to the multi-day shows line – it’s not attached to the show day line.  He would think that if we had meant to allow ourselves to increase the number of show days we would have either put a duplicate or similar line there or just place that one line attached to the number of days.  
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Taylor said  to look at where it went, he thinks the capitalization into different definitions, but he also know that when you talk about the abutters and that of people’s interest this process here was announced and his recollection from the last meeting was there was a single anonymous abutter calling mentioning the loud speaker – no details of when.  The loudspeaker situation has been changed since we entered the agreement, so we have no idea if this person is referring to something old and just bringing up the same problem as before or something new, but I also think when the abutters get notified and they choose not to do anything.
Millias said that if he was an abutter and got some notification that this is about to take place I would be saying ‘no, we’re already limited to 30 days – there is an agreement in place’.  Shows don’t necessarily mean much to you, but they may to an abutter.  Taylor said that he entirely disagrees with that because the fact that the abutter got notified of this was being asked and if there was a concern, they would contact you guys and say, ‘what is going on, we don’t think you should be doing this’ and they would be here.  There is basically no abutter response to this, this is the second meeting.  The first meeting, I don’t consider an anonymous call without any details that we can respond to, being something credible to consider here.

Seelig said that there were creditable details.  He is not going to say that Taylor was right about the loudspeaker since neither of them know when that complaint is from, but they have mentioned about people going into driveways and the sound issues.
Taylor said that is a separate issue and Seelig understood that but when he says that the anonymous phone call invalid, as far as Seelig is concerned it is not.  Taylor said that whoever made the call about the loudspeaker they need to know where they live and what show they are talking about because there has been changes to the sound system and Scott lives up near the nearest abutters to the property.
Roy said the nearest abutter is the opposite side to where the horse shows are and she can tell you where the noise is coming from because she has spent a lot of time in that driveway during the dog hearing cases.  Taylor’s recollection is where the shows are and that is woodlands and then … Roy said right next door, right in the front.  He said that is up where Scott’s house is.  

Garron said nevertheless, whether the caller called or not it is our responsibility to take concerns at heart.  Whether or there are calls or not we have enough information from the last time we had these hearings and we finally made the agreement that we would consider their feelings in this.  Secondly, if you felt at the time you were in the court that we had no right to limit the amount of shows then why didn’t you fight for that at that time.  Taylor said that was in 1993 and Garron said he was talking two years ago.
Taylor said that they reached an agreement and Garron said right but if he felt that he didn’t have to make an agreement with us and that you could do anything you wanted then why are you now bringing that subject up?

Taylor asked if he was advocating that the better position for Clawson and the town was expensive litigation on all sides and Garron said if it was him and felt that it was his right he would be in there.  Taylor said he guesses Garron has the Town’s checkbook then and Garron said it is not about the Town’s checkbook, he is talking as an individual, if he felt it was a compromise that says we as individuals can also deny without giving a reason why. Garron asked if he was right or wrong and Taylor said to this specific question …
Garron said the question is if we deny this without giving a reason, what is your stance and Taylor said he would have to talk to Clawson about how he wants to pursue it because the Town and Clawson both agree that the horse shows are as a right, it says it right in the agreement the town agrees horse shows on this property are as of right,  he thinks, on page 1 of the agreement.  Garron then asked why are we here and Millias asked then why did they put 30 days in the agreement.  
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Millias said there was an agreement to take care of everybody, so we have to limit the amount of shows and limit whatever aggravation it is for the abutters.  You (meaning Taylor & Clawson) obviously agreed to the amount of days and we also did and here we are.  Taylor said when you say we agreed to the amount of days we were dealing from the 1993 Agreement and Millias said they are talking about the agreement from two years ago.

Taylor continued to say that Clawson at time wanted to have additional days and the Town also had things that they wanted so when the agreement was opened, a lot of that was actually focused more on a lot of the fire department, a lot with …. 
Roy said required it for the safety of the people who are in the horse show.  Roy said it benefitted the people who get hurt that they are going to have a professional certified paramedic taking care of them so it was not the town who benefited from this.  Taylor said well actually … she said they are enforcing something that needs to happen for the safety of the people.  Taylor said the implication that is disputed that there was never qualified individuals and Roy said Philip we are not going to go there and Millias said they are not going to visit that. 
Roy said we have the fire chief in the back who can speak to that. Taylor did say they worked it all out and Roy added it was inadequate.  Taylor then said that he thinks there was licensing issues and Millias said that sounds like ‘inadequate’.
Roy said she is going to speak her truth about this whole situation.  She began by saying that of the three Board members she was more open to adding the days.  Previously they talked about Clawson not following the rules but she was going to try to see beyond that.  But when the town’s attorney said that the Board cannot change this agreement, she is am NOT going to do it because she is not going to open the Town of Halifax up for any kind of a lawsuit that we went beyond what the scope of our ability is.  Number two, she said that he keeps referencing the Agreement from 1993 which she believes becomes void when the negotiated a new agreement two years ago, where they we spent at least nine and a painful process and not once did they discuss anything about it being more than 30 days – not once – and we went through every detail.  And you talk about the benefits of the Town - the benefits of the Town is to make sure that our abutters and the people were happy.  The one thing that she fought for personally was the paramedic thing because they did not feel that Clawson had a proper over-seeing of the medical attention if somebody got hurt.  So, when you talk about a benefit you make it seem like we are getting some kind of huge benefit.  The things that we put in the Agreement, again, was for safety and for the abutters to be able to live in a peaceful way so those were the benefits that we fought for the community.  She thinks the horse shows are a nice thing for the Town of Halifax, but we had an agreement for 30 days and if we wanted it more than that then we should have put it in the agreement. And then you talk about capitalizing a letter – we had two different attorneys look at this and both said we do not have the power to add the days.

Taylor asked if could address on what Roy just said and she said sure.  He said that 1993 agreement is mentioned because the Board is bringing it up asking why are there certain things in there?  They are in this agreement because they were carried over from the 1993 agreement so rather than replacing the whole agreement, they amended it.  With regard to the abutters, he can address the issues about the driveways and things like that but there are no specifics to really respond to about any specific issue except when they are brought up Mr. Clawson responds to them.  With regard to some of the differences of language in the agreement he will have to go back and look at all the drafts to see what edits there were.  He disagrees with the Counsel however he wasn’t provided any indication in advance about what Counsel’s opinion was in order to address it for them to see if that change what their advice to the town would be.  With us putting in the agreement the ability of the Board of Selectmen to have additional horse shows I believe that includes days, show days as being required in order to give full meaning to that sentence, that is why he believes the Board of Selectmen has the authority to do that.  
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Millias said or not.  Taylor said you could say ‘or not’ but then we come back to when the Board makes a decision if they do have to have rational behind it and when the Board has already entered an agreement that says these shows are as a right and this is what our regulations are.
Millias said these 30 shows are … Taylor said any horse show as a right. 
Millias but the 30-day limit

Taylor said it does not say and the exact language is ‘the town has alleged that although the conduct of horse shows is permitted’ not these horse shows, not a number of horse shows, but just horse shows.  So, the Town agrees as a right and Clawson can hold horse shows on this property.  

Roy asked Taylor to read the line about the 30-day show where it limits the 30 days.  He read ‘commencing on the effective date Clawson shall limit the number of show days on the premises to 30 days in any calendar year’.  Millias emphasized on the word shall and Taylor said yes it says he ‘shall’ – so he agrees, he is only going to have 30 days but then we got later ‘additional horse shows may be held with the approval of the Board of Selectmen’.  Roy asked if he could read the line before that and he read ‘and further agree that there shall be no more than seven multiple day horse shows [capitalized] in any calendar year under this agreement.  Additional horse shows [not capitalized] may be held with the approval of the Board of Selectmen.’  And he said the contention that it would imply that you can add days where needed to make that sentence effective.
Roy that that it was interesting that the Board would say 30 days and then just … Taylor said it is not interesting because the reason it was in there was to prevent the costly endeavor of court and attorneys when the only issue in this Agreement that would be foreseeable to have a discussion about changing the shows and the days – that is the only thing in the agreement that they would really have a discussion about.  Everything else is pretty much fixed and there isn’t anything to really discuss about it.  He said the language was put in the Agreement to have this conversation and not to have the conversation in a court or elsewhere.  It is to give Clawson the ability to ask and the ability for the Board to address it.
Garron said the two lawyers that the Board talked with are saying that they do not have that right.  He is not saying Taylor is wrong or right and you claim that they read it wrong.  Taylor said he did not know what the basis of their interpretation is and asked if the town will give him permission to talk with them or permission for them to speak with me. 
Seelig said that he sure that they have had that dialogue before when they were doing the negotiating and Taylor said that he talked with Attorney Mayo and not sure which one they would choose. 
Millias and Roy said both attorneys came up with the same opinion – the ‘shows’ are different than the ‘days’. 
Taylor said his question is, is that the issue for the Board’s - the authority to do this.  Millias said that is a side issue as we also had some other compliance issues along the way as well.  

Taylor said at the last meeting the Board had brought up the issue with water so he reached out to the Board of Health and what they told him is there have not been any issues except for a couple of delays at the beginning, she didn’t give him the exact times so his guess it was when the plan was being implemented and working out some of the details or immediately after that when it was being first done but she said after a couple of delays in the beginning Mr. Clawson has been compliant and the water has been tested fine.  He said he did not know exactly what she means by the beginning – if she was meaning when we were going through all the issues.  Seelig said it would have been in the spring of ’18, which would have been after we went through all the issues at the very least. 
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Taylor said he thinks Seelig is putting words in my mouth … the beginning of 2017 was when the Board of Health wanted … Seelig said that he would be happy to pull all the correspondence out because he knows he was getting complaints last spring.  
Taylor said he did not know what she meant by ‘beginning’ because this was negotiated and dealt with in the beginning of 2017 dealing with the Board of Health and through that so he does not know.
Roy said that we started negotiating the Agreement in the summer of 2016 and we finished in the fall.
Taylor said that he is talking about the Board of Health which was 2017.  This has nothing to do with the agreement.  So, in 2017 because when he went through this we were going through things I think in the beginning of the year in 2017 and then he believes in April is when it was finalized in 2017.  Roy asked if that is when the Court approved it and Taylor said that has nothing to do with this Agreement and this Agreement was actually approved by the court in August of 2017 and Millias said that they started to live by the agreement prior to that and Taylor concurred that the effective date in the agreement was July of 2016.  This is with the Board of Health entirely outside of the agreement and has nothing to do with the Board of Selectmen so to speak this is dealing with the water and their issues.  That was in the beginning of 2017.  Millias stated that part of the Agreement was to comply with the appropriate boards, or the governing boards and Taylor said according to them we are in compliance and he reached out to the exact people you told me to reach out to and her exact words were that were a couple of delays in the beginning.  Millias asked whose exact words were they … Cathleen Drinan and he said yes and that was the email he got from her.  Millias said at this point he thinks they have beaten this to death.  
Taylor said a lot of times it is vague responses.  Like at the first meeting, the Board of Health says there is a problem and when he reached out, he is not sensing there is a problem from them.  Millias said that they might not have something specifically but when he came away from meeting with the attorneys there was the clear indication that there was a distinction between the shows and dates, and that we do not have the authority outside the Agreement short of altering it.  Taylor aid that they were hoping to discuss that and Millias said something we can deal with, but in the immediate moment he does not know where they are at.  
Taylor said they have talk about the water issue and Clawson is aware of the driveway issue and he will be making his driveway much more noticeable and he is going to speak to the neighbors about putting a sign saying no turning around.  Millias added that they had the gazebo issue, which Taylor thinks has been resolved.  Millias said will all those things aside, he is still wrestling with the information he came away with after meeting with the town’s our attorneys and that is kind of where he is staying.  
Taylor said that goes back to where he asked if they would permit their attorneys to speak with him and Roy and Millias said they would.  Seelig said he saw no reason why not.  
Taylor said he wants to address any other concerns. 
Seelig said he guesses at this point the questions that Taylor might be asking, underneath all this is could you provide any concrete reasons for not approving the increase and he questioned once you say yes to 33, at what point could the BOS say no.  Roy agreed and said for instance, if you want the three extra show days, right, and the attorney says we can grant that, then that gets granted and then next year you come in for 40 shows, right, and you’re going to expect that that gets granted.  She then asked if Seelig notified the abutter by certified mail and he said no regular mail because this is not a public hearing/formal situation.  
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Roy asked Taylor if his interpretation of the Agreement is the Board has no say on the number of days and if they wanted to approve a hundred shows they could just do it and Taylor said absolutely.  He thinks they could start looking at some point the discussion of you know, the reasonableness but I don’t think, I think when you also …
Millias stated that 30 days was not reasonable when they agreed to the agreement and Taylor said 30 days is what was needed at the time of the Agreement and Clawson added that the old agreement stated 25. 
Roy said that if Clawson wanted any more than the 33 then they would need to have a formal hearing and notify the abutters because they are impacted, and public safety and other Boards.
Millias asked if he meant more than 33?
Roy said if our attorney has a conversation with Taylor and they all agree that we have the power to extend it and you are willing to support that and we go to 33 days and stays at 33 so next year …  Taylor said yes, they are asking for 33 – New England Dressage is taking up two of those days.  He then said once we get beyond the 33-day issue for this year he believes Clawson would be more than happy to have a discussion about limitation going forward; get some sort of understanding along like long-term so we can have an answer to that question.   Roy thinks that needs to be answered because we all walked away with a different interpretation, we as a Board interpreted it as 30 days and he interpreted it as whatever he wanted.   
Taylor said that they could put language in there that we could ask the Board of Selectmen for more and Roy said but there would be no end. If there was a roomful of abutters who were saying no way, then he would have to you understand that the BOS would want to limit it.  
Taylor said that one thing that has not come up in this, is what these changes do, because the April show is not happening anymore, so that is one of the reasons to be seen.  Then Clawson’s regular show in June and then a 2-day show, and we are proposing two days for New England Dressage.  He continued to say in May, Clawson regularly had a one-week, a 5-day show, and now they are actually doing another 5-day show.  One of the benefits of that is the majority of the people are expected to stay for both shows so that would limit a lot of the large in-and-out off the property, which was addressed in the Agreement about how soon they can come and how quick they leave.  He understands the dates, Scott will correct me if I’m wrong, but there’s also, you know, you can only put so much use onto these fields, so you can’t over use them.  So, there is, there is a capacity of the property itself that can handle this.  
Clawson said that the BOS asked if he would go above the 33 and the question he had for New England Dressage was would they want to expand the days and a member of the New England Dressage who was in the audience said no because they don’t have the man-power to run it for three days.
Clawson said as far as the dates that he has now, he is maxed out the use of the facility and the best event is New England Dressage and that is a totally different type of event that does not take up as much abuse as the shows he typically runs.

Roy said that they definitely would have to be some kind of a formal hearing if they were to ever be back in this room next year for additional days making it formal reaching out even further to the abutters that we were going to redo the agreement because in their eyes that is what they are doing.
Taylor asked when does the Town have their fall Town Meeting and Seelig they don’t necessarily have one.  
Taylor said his thought is they would like to get the three days and then probably towards the end of the year discuss making a change let’s see how the season goes.  Millias said that he is not going to consider it unless he hears something different from our attorney.
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Taylor understood that.  He wants to address all the other, I don’t want to deal with your attorney and then have something else thrown at him and he presumes the Board does want to spend money on their attorney if there’s a bigger issue to deal with that is why he wants to deal with those … 

Millias said as long as everything stays complied with that’s in the Agreement now and Roy mentioned that the gazebo is not to be used at all during the shows and it is just for residential use and that they all agreed on that.  Taylor understood that.  
Seelig said that he will contact town counsel.
Millias said just because Seelig mentioned it could he please pull out the emails about the water issues.  Taylor asked if he could forward him that information and Seelig said sure all those are public record. 
Roy thought that it was a long time between meetings and Seelig suggested that they could have a meeting next week if need be and Millias said that they are not sure what Town Counsel’s availability is.  
Roy understand but was concerned that the New England Dressage was not going to be able to have their show.  Millias said even if they were to say tonight this is where I think you were trying to go contingent upon they still are going to have to wait until we meet any way.
Taylor suggested that the Board could look at New England Dressage Association as an entirely separate request outside of Clawson because he believes the Board could consider them conducting a show because it is not Clawson conducting that show, as they are  an entirely separate organization – to basically it would similar to their large event permit, that criteria, but he think that because this is an agricultural property, and agricultural use, I don’t know if historically file in that he believes that they wouldn’t have any problems complying with all the parameters of Clawson’s Agreement and to hold their show on whatever the dates of June are.  He thinks the Board can give permission to a third party to conduct their own horse show that just happens to be at that location.  

Millias asked isn’t that what most of them do anyway?
Garron said that circumvents what is written in the contract.
Millias asked if he ran Silver Leaf’s show and Clawson said he did and said that he also runs Silver Oaks – he does a certain portion of it – he is the Manager or Executive Director of the show.  Taylor said that is not a function that he would have with New England Dressage, he would be the landlord and the member of the New England Dressage said that he is the landlord and they are the tenant/lessee. 

Taylor said that he understands what Garron is saying about circumventing the Agreement but not exactly because the Agreement was between Clawson and for his shows and he believes … Millias said he thinks it is the same thing and Garron said the show is on the property so you are talking the same thing. 
Seelig said he can talk to the Board to set up a special meeting date depending on their preferences and what we hear from Mayo.  He thinks the Board is interested one way or another coming to a decision having worked with counsel and to do that sooner or later but to provide adequate time for that decision making to occur.  So, for instance if you, Larry says ‘hey look, I’ll meet with you folks on Friday, or I’ll meet with you on Monday, I’ll meet with Phil and everybody else on Monday or Friday, whatever works.  Millias said that they are pretty flexible. 
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to set a date of February 12th at 7:45 and if we have an emergency meeting before that we can notify the parties in play.  
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EXECUTIVE SESSION
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board voted as follows to enter into Executive Session at 9:19 p.m. to discuss contract negotiations for Sergeants, Firefighters and Highway/Cemetery/Recycling with the Fire and Police Chiefs and Highway Surveyor:
	Kim R. Roy
	-
	Yes

	Troy E. Garron
	-
	Yes

	Thomas Millias
	-
	Yes


Millias announced that no statement would be made at the end of the Executive Session and the Board would not reconvene in open session.

--------------

Moved by Roy and seconded by Millias, the Board voted as follows to come out of Executive Session at 10:01 p.m.: 

	Kim R. Roy
	-
	Yes

	Troy E. Garron
	-
	Yes

	Thomas Millias
	-
	Yes


MEETING ADJOURNED

There being no further business, moved by Roy and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn the meeting at 10:01 p.m.

-------------------------------------------------

Thomas Millias
Clerk
/pjm
